
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
SUMMER VILLAGE OF HALF MOON BAY 

       JUNE 28, 2022 @ 9:00 A.M.  
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING PRIOR TO COUNCIL 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. AGENDA - additions/deletions
- adoption

C. ADOPTION OF MINUTES -     Regular Meeting Minutes, May 17, 2022

D. INFORMATION ITEMS

1) Action Items List
2) Accounts Payable Report
3) Public Works
4) Development Update

E. REQUESTS FOR DECISION

1) Council & Legislation

a) Bylaw Enforcement Officer Bylaw
b) Cheque Signing Policy

2) Planning & Development

a) Tourist Home LUB Amendment
b) Land Use Bylaw Quotes
c) Fees Bylaw Amendment

F. COUNCIL, COMMITTEES AND CORRESPONDENCE

1) Council Reports

a) Mayor Johnston
b) Deputy Mayor Remington
c) Councillor Pashak



 
2) Committee Reports 

 
a) Julie Maplethorpe, Summer Village of Jarvis Bay 

• Town of Sylvan Lake Library Board 
 
 

3) Upcoming Meetings 
 

a) Council Meeting – July 4, 2022 
 
 
G.           ADJOURNMENT 



Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

May 17, 2022 

1 | P a g e

Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting of the Summer Village of Half 
Moon Bay, Province of Alberta, held May 17, 2022, in the Summer 
Villages on Sylvan Lake Administration Office at Sylvan Lake, Alberta. 

PRESENT Mayor:  Jon Johnston via Zoom  
Deputy Mayor: Andrea Remington via Zoom 
Councillor:  Mike Pashak via Zoom   
CAO:  Tanner Evans     
Development Officer: Kara Kashuba   
Recording Secretary: Teri Musseau 

CALL TO ORDER The Meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. by Mayor Johnston. 

AGENDA APPROVAL 

HMC-22-037 MOVED by Councillor Pashak that the agenda be adopted as presented.

CARRIED 

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

  HMC-22-038 MOVED by Councillor Pashak that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of Council held on April 19, 2022, be approved as 
presented. 

CARRIED 

INFORMATION ITEMS 

1) Action Items List
2) Accounts Payable
3) Quarterly Financial Report
4) Development Update

HMC-22-039 MOVED by Mayor Johnston that the information items be 
accepted as presented. 

CARRIED 

C-1

Page 1 of 6



  Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 May 17, 2022 
  

 

2 | P a g e  
 

 REQUEST FOR DECISION 
  
 COUNCIL & LEGISLATION 
 
                       Bylaw #166-22 Bylaw Enforcement Officer Bylaw 

HMC-22-040 MOVED by Deputy Mayor Remington that Council give 1st 
reading to the Bylaw Enforcement Officer Bylaw #166-22. 

     CARRIED 
 
 
 
Bylaw #167-22 Subdivision Authority 
HMC-22-041  MOVED by Councillor Pashak that Council give 1st reading to the 

Subdivision Authority #167-22. 
     CARRIED 
 
HMC-22-042  MOVED by Mayor Johnston that Council give 2nd reading to the 

Subdivision Authority #167-22. 
     CARRIED 
 
HMC-22-043  MOVED by Deputy Mayor Remington that by unanimous consent 

Council give 3rd reading to the Subdivision Authority #167-22 at 
this meeting. 

     CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
HMC-22-044  MOVED by Councillor Pashak that Council give 3rd and final 

reading to the Subdivision Authority #167-22. 
     CARRIED 
 
 
 
 Bylaw #168-22 Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Bylaw 
HMC-22-045  MOVED by Councillor Pashak that Council give 1st reading to the 

Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Bylaw #168-22. 
     CARRIED 
 
HMC-22-046  MOVED by Mayor Johnston that Council give 2nd reading to the 

Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Bylaw #168-22. 
     CARRIED 
 
HMC-22-047  MOVED by Deputy Mayor Remington that by unanimous consent 

Council give 3rd reading to the Subdivision and Development 
Appeal Board Bylaw #168-22 at this meeting. 

     CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

C-1

Page 2 of 6



  Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 May 17, 2022 
  

 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
HMC-22-048  MOVED by Councillor Pashak that Council give 3rd and final 

reading to the Subdivision and Development Appeal Board Bylaw 
#168-22. 

     CARRIED 
 
 
 

 Stormwater Drainage Solution 
HMC-22-049  MOVED by Councillor Pashak that Council provide the owner of 

49 Lakeview Road the cost of materials to build a drainage swale 
to a maximum of $4,000.00 based on receipts provided, and 
further, Council to do work under Lakeview Road and extend the 
culvert.      

     CARRIED 
 
 
HMC-22-050 MOVED by Mayor Johnston that Council recess the meeting for 

the Land Use Bylaw Amendment Bylaw #165-22 public hearing 
at 10:04 a.m. 

     CARRIED 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
 Mayor Johnston declared the Public Hearing for Bylaw #165-22, 
  Land Use Bylaw Amendment Bylaw, open at 10:05 a.m.     
  
  Mayor Johnston provided the procedure for the public hearing. 
       

Kara Kashuba, Development Officer, provided the background on 
the requested bylaw amendments. 

 
 Part One: General 1.7 Establishment of Fees 
 

Current Regulation: 

Development Permit application fees and fees for other matters 
arising through this Land Use Bylaw will be established by resolution 
of Council. Council may at any time by resolution increase, decrease 
or establish new fees for matters covered in this Bylaw.  

 

 

C-1

Page 3 of 6



  Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 May 17, 2022 
  

 

4 | P a g e  
 

Proposed Regulation: 

Revise to: Development Permit application fees and fees for other 
matters arising through this Land Use Bylaw will be established by 
Council in the Summer Village of Half Moon Bay Fees Bylaw. Council 
may amend the bylaw to increase, decrease or establish new fees by 
an amendment bylaw.  

Reasoning: 

The way this section is currently worded is incorrect as a bylaw 
cannot be changed by resolution of Council, it must go through the 
normal amendment process as any bylaw would. A bylaw amendment 
needs a first reading, a public hearing and then must receive second 
and third reading to pass. This is in contravention of section 8(c) of 
the Municipal Government Act, which requires fees to be set by 
bylaw.  

 
        Mayor Johnston asked if any written comments were received.  None were 

received.  
 

 Mayor Johnston asked if anyone would like to speak. No public 
were present to speak. 

 
 Mayor Johnston declared the Public Hearing for Bylaw #165-22 
 closed at 10:09 a.m. and noted no further comments or 

submissions would be received. 
 
 
HMC-22-051 MOVED by Mayor Johnston that Council reconvene the Council 

meeting at 10:09 a.m. 
     CARRIED 
 
 
 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
 

  Tourist Homes 
HMC-22-052 MOVED by Mayor Johnston that Council direct Administration to 

draft a Land Use Bylaw Amendment Bylaw for Tourist Homes. 
     CARRIED 
 
 
 
 

C-1

Page 4 of 6



  Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 May 17, 2022 
  

 

5 | P a g e  
 

 Bylaw #165-22 Land Use Bylaw Amendment Bylaw 
HMC-22-053  MOVED by Mayor Johnson that Council give 2nd reading to the 

Land Use Bylaw Amendment Bylaw #165-22. 
     CARRIED 
 
 
HMC-22-054  MOVED by Councillor Pashak that Council give 3rd and final 

reading to the Land Use Bylaw Amendment Bylaw #165-22. 
     CARRIED 
 
 

 COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

        Mayor Johnston  
• Joint Services Committee 

  
        Deputy Mayor Remington 

• No reports 
 

 Councillor Pashak  
• Written reports 

o Sylvan Lake Regional Wastewater Commission 
(SLRWWC)  

o SLRWWC South Shore Line Project 
o Association of Summer Villages of Alberta 

(ASVA) 
o Alberta Municipalities  
 

• Verbal reports 
o Association of Summer Villages of Alberta Town 

Hall 
       
 
   

HMC-22-055  MOVED by Mayor Johnston that the Council and Committee 
reports be accepted as information. 

    CARRIED 
 

 
NEXT MEETING  
 
HMC-22-056  MOVED by Mayor Johnston that the next meeting of Council be 

held June 28, 2022, at 9:00 a.m. 
     CARRIED 

C-1

Page 5 of 6



  Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 May 17, 2022 
  

 

6 | P a g e  
 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
HMC-22-057  MOVED by Mayor Johnston that being the agenda matters have been 

concluded, the meeting adjourned at 11:10 a.m. 
     CARRIED 
 
 
 

   __________________________________ 
                             JON JOHNSTON, MAYOR 

 
        
 

   __________________________________ 
                                                    TANNER EVANS, CAO 

 
 

 
 

C-1

Page 6 of 6



 HALF MOON BAY COUNCIL MEETING TASKS
TASK ASSIGNED COMMENTS

FURTHER CLEAN UP NEEDED AFTER TREE REMOVAL IN RESERVE Robert
DEAD TREES PREVIOUSLY DISCUSSED ON PRIMROSE & WEST SIDE FOR SPRING REMOVAL Robert
WALK THROUGH RESERVES TO DETERMINE IF MARKED THREES NEED TO COME OUT THIS YEAR - Robert
PRIMROSE ENTRANCE, LEFT HAND SIDE, CORNER PROPERTY, TREE NEEDS TO BE REMOVED Robert
TREES ON RR21, 10-12 NEED REMOVING Robert
PATHWAY POLICY/SURVEY RESULTS TANNER
CREATE POLICY FOR PUBLIC WORKS ITEMS TO SET SERVICE LEVELS AND STANDARDS FOR MAINTRobert
LOOK INTO INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS THROUGH ALBERTA MUNICIPALIITES TANNER/TINA
DON’T CUT DOWN STUMPS FURTHER
CHECK ON DEAD TREES BY FRANKLIN'S PROPERTY FOR REMOVAL
DEAD TREES AT CLARK'S PROPERTY FOR REMOVAL
REMOVE ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS FROM DEVELOPMENT PERMIT SUMMARY
EDIT SBC WW DOCUMENTS TO MAKE APPLICABLE TO HMB FOR RESIDENTS
HAVE CONTRACTOR CUT DOWN 12-13 TREES Robert Scheduled
DRAFT TOURIST HOMES BYLAW ON WEBSITE, EMAIL BLAST AND POSTED ON BILLBOARD CAROLYN

COMPLETED

CHECK ON EXPIRING MSI FUNDS TANNER
EMAIL ANDREA 10-CAPITAL PLAN TANNER
SCHEDULE SPECIAL MEETING TO APPROVE CAPITAL BUDGET AFTER MSI FUNDING INFO AND DRA TANNER
ASK HOT TUB OWNER TO HAVE DRAINAGE HOSE PUT AWAY FROM WELL CASING KARA
AMEND COUNCIL REMUNERATION POLICY TO REMOVE 1(B) TERI
SEND OUT COUNCIL DATES UNTIL END OF YEAR TERI
ADD COMPLETION DATE AND COMMENTS SECTION TO COUNCIL TASKS TERI
MOVE $74,281 TO UNRESTRICTED SURPLUS FROM GENERAL CONTINGENCY TINA Complete
BRING APRIL COUNCIL EXPENSES SHEETS TO MAY MEETING
PROVIDE SNOW CONTRACTOR FEEDBACK ON EQUIPMENT AND RIDGES LEFT ON PEOPLES DRIVEWRobert
PRICING FOR DRAINAGE DITCH FOR NEXT MEETING Robert
SNAPPED WHITE MARKER POSTS ON HMB DRIVE BY SNOW PLOUGH Robert
PLAYGROUND SIGN SNAPPED OFF BY SNOW PLOUGH Robert
TALK TO AL'S BOBCAT ABOUT REPLACEMENT COST OF DAMAGED PROPERTY Robert
TALK TO OWNER ABOUT CULVERT/SWALE FROM STANTEC RECOMMENDATION B1
FINANCIAL RESERVE POLICY ON WEBSITE CAROLYN
ALL POLICIES AND BYLAWS ON WEBSITE CAROLYN

D-1

Page 1 of 1



Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 

Administration and Finance 

Council Date:  June 28, 2022 

Information Item  

Agenda Item: Accounts Payable Update

Background: 
Total payables processed and presented to Council   $   39,322.36 
The following list identifies any payments over $3,000 and monthly costs: 

1. Summer Village of Norglenwold   $    7,494.54 
a. April 2022 Muni Specific Costs
b. April 2022 Shared Costs

2. Summer Village of Norglenwold-Accrual  $  10,943.23 
a. May 2022 Muni Specific Costs
b. May 2022 Shared Costs

3. Alberta School Foundation Fund     $  25,783.15 
a. 2nd Quarter School Fund

Council Expense Claims Report:
May 2022 

 Jon Johnston $   0 
 Andrea Remington $   0 
 Mike Pashak $   100.00 

Administrative Recommendations: 
Council to accept as information. 

Authorities: 
MGA 207 (c): The chief administrative officer advised and informs the council on 
the operations and affairs of the municipality.  

D-2

Page 1 of 4



Bank Code - NewAcct - New Main Bank Code

Invoice #

COMPUTER CHEQUE

Detail Amount Payment AmountGL Transaction Description
Payment # Date Vendor Name

GL Account
62 2022-05-31 Empringham Disposal Corp

32551 312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 13.40
32551 243-000-200 - Contracted Servic Bi Weekly Collection 281.35267.95

63 2022-06-20 Black Press Group Ltd
34264932 312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 32.40
34264932 212-400-222 - Advertising Public Notice-LUB 680.56648.16

64 2022-06-20 Empringham Disposal Corp
33711 312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 21.63
33711 243-000-200 - Contracted Servic Weekly Collection 328.90
33711 243-000-200 - Contracted Servic 69 Cart Lease to Own 454.03103.50

65 2022-06-20 Red Deer Catholic Regional
2022-2 201-100-130 - ASFF-Residential Supplementary Tax Requisi 898.56898.56

66 2022-06-20 Rugged West Maintenance Inc.
1243 312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 10.00
1243 232-000-200 - Green Space Pro Mowing & Trimming- May 26 210.00200.00

2,524.50Total Computer Cheque:

Invoice #

EFT

Detail Amount Payment AmountGL Transaction Description
Payment # Date Vendor Name

GL Account
35 2022-04-30 Summer Village of Norglenwold

2022-00058 212-400-231 - Audit Fees Metrix Group-2nd Audit Billin 4,587.85
2022-00058 212-400-230 - Legal Fees Brownlee-Legal Services 4,661.3573.50
2022-00062 212-300-217 - Phone/Fax/Interne Phone/Fax/Internet 0.00
2022-00062 212-200-510 - Office Supplies Office Supplies 43.61
2022-00062 212-100-211 - WCB WCB 87.56
2022-00062 212-100-210 - Travel & Subsiste Travel & Subsistence 0.00
2022-00062 212-100-140 - Benefits BENEFITS 250.90
2022-00062 212-100-130 - Training TRAINING 91.37
2022-00062 212-100-266 - PW Fleet PW Fleet 18.47
2022-00062 212-200-500 - Printing Costs Printing Costs 38.80
2022-00062 212-100-110 - Salaries SALARIES 2,090.42
2022-00062 212-200-215 - Postage/Freight/C Postage/FreightCourier 0.00
2022-00062 212-300-510 - Other Contingenc Administrative Contingenc 9.91
2022-00062 212-300-540 - Utilities Utilities 103.48
2022-00062 212-300-250 - Facility Improvem Facility Improvements 43.70
2022-00062 212-300-530 - Building Insurance Building Insurance 0.00
2022-00062 212-300-263 - Condominium Co Condominium Costs 0.00
2022-00062 212-300-240 - Computer Softwa Computer Software/Mtn 16.86
2022-00062 212-300-255 - Facility Maintenan Facility Maintenance 22.70
2022-00062 212-300-265 - Equipment Mainte Equipment Maintenace 0.00
2022-00062 212-300-270 - Equipment Renta Equipment Rental 12.45
2022-00062 212-300-242 - IT Equipment IT Equipment 2,833.192.96

7,494.54Payment Total:
36 2022-05-31 Summer Village of Norglenwold

2022-00072 212-400-231 - Audit Fees Metrix Group-Audit Bldg Pro 500.00500.00
2022-00076 212-300-240 - Computer Softwa Computer Software/Mtn 68.01
2022-00076 212-300-530 - Building Insurance Building Insurance 0.00

Summer Village of Half Moon Bay
List of Accounts for ApprovalDate Printed

2022-06-20  10:52 AM Page 1Batch:  2022-00037 to 2022-00045

D-2

Page 2 of 4



Invoice #

EFT

Detail Amount Payment AmountGL Transaction Description
Payment # Date Vendor Name

GL Account
2022-00076 212-300-510 - Other Contingenc Administrative Contingenc 6.91
2022-00076 212-300-270 - Equipment Renta Equipment Rental 12.45
2022-00076 212-300-265 - Equipment Mainte Equipment Maintenace 0.00
2022-00076 212-300-242 - IT Equipment IT Equipment -17.40
2022-00076 212-300-263 - Condominium Co Condominium Costs 0.00
2022-00076 212-200-215 - Postage/Freight/C Postage/FreightCourier 242.63
2022-00076 212-300-250 - Facility Improvem Facility Improvements 0.00
2022-00076 212-300-540 - Utilities Utilities 40.88
2022-00076 212-300-217 - Phone/Fax/Interne Phone/Fax/Internet 56.37
2022-00076 212-200-510 - Office Supplies Office Supplies 38.76
2022-00076 212-200-500 - Printing Costs Printing Costs 55.42
2022-00076 212-100-266 - PW Fleet PW Fleet 17.06
2022-00076 212-100-211 - WCB WCB 40.12
2022-00076 212-100-210 - Travel & Subsiste Travel & Subsistence 8.00
2022-00076 212-100-140 - Benefits BENEFITS 81.28
2022-00076 212-100-130 - Training TRAINING 40.60
2022-00076 212-300-255 - Facility Maintenan Facility Maintenance 97.21
2022-00076 212-100-110 - Salaries SALARIES 2,948.692,160.39

3,448.69Payment Total:
10,943.23Total EFT:

Invoice #

OTHER

Detail Amount Payment AmountGL Transaction Description
Payment # Date Vendor Name

GL Account
3127 2022-05-31 Epcor

MAY242022-693 312-000-260 - GST Paid Refund GST Tax Code 3.40
MAY242022-693 272-000-544 - Recreation Shelte Utilities 71.4868.08

3140 2022-06-20 Alberta School Foundation Fund
12907 201-100-130 - ASFF-Residential 2nd Quarter School Funding 25,783.1525,783.15

25,854.63Total Other:

39,322.36Total NewAcct:

Certified Correct This June 20, 2022

______________________________________      ______________________________________

Mayor                                                                        Administrator

Summer Village of Half Moon Bay
List of Accounts for ApprovalDate Printed

2022-06-20  10:52 AM Page 2Batch:  2022-00037 to 2022-00045

D-2

Page 3 of 4



D-2

Page 4 of 4



June 21, 22 

Summer Village of  Half Moon Bay 

June 28, 2022 

Public Works 

Information Item 

Agenda Item: Public Works Report 

Background: 
The following will provide an update on current Public Works projects and 
programs: 

- Tree removal in the West Reserve have been scheduled for the week of July
11, 2022.These trees have been marked with blue paint and trees marked at the
base will have dead limbs removed to mitigate potential saftey hazards.

- Several more trees and stumps along Primrose Land had been marked for
removal. These trees have been marked with green paint and trees marked at
the base will have dead limbs removed to mitigate potential safety hazards. Work
to be scheduled.

- Drainage work on Half Moon Drive and Lakeview Road has been completed. A
new culvert has been installed and the ditch graded on Half Moon Drive. Two
new culverts have been installed and the ditches graded on Lakeview Road.
Quotation for the Half Moon Drive work was $16,763.54 and for the Lakeview
Road was $12,425.00.

Options for Consideration: 
Accept as information 

Authorities: 
MGA 207 (c) "advises and informs the council on the operation and affairs of the 
municipality"  

D-3

Page 1 of 1



June 17, 2022 

Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 

June 28, 2022 

Planning and Development 

Information Item  

Agenda Item: Development Update 

Background: 
Development Permit Update: 
Currently there are 100 development permits issued in the Summer Villages (34 
in Birchcliff, 3 in Half Moon Bay, 16 in Jarvis Bay, 21 in Norglenwold, and 26 in 
Sunbreaker Cove). 

The following is the list in Half Moon Bay: 
49 Lakeview Road Demolition & Dwelling 
32 Lakeview Road Dwelling Addition 
43 Lakeview Road Hot Tub 

Administrative Recommendations: 
Council to accept as information. 

Authorities: 
Land Use Bylaw #123/13. 

D-4

Page 1 of 1



Summer Village of  Half Moon Bay 

June 28, 2022 

Council and Legislation 

Request for Decision 

Agenda Item: Bylaw Enforcement Officer Bylaw 

Background: 
During the Municipal Accountability Program Review (MAP) done April 2021, 
Municipal Affairs identified legislative gaps that needed to be addressed.   

The Bylaw Enforcement Officer Bylaw is a required bylaw under section 556 of 
the Municipal Government Act.  While Municipal Affairs is aware Half Moon Bay 
does not employ a Bylaw Enforcement Officer, this bylaw is a requirement and 
must be in place for every municipality.  The CAO is the Bylaw Enforcement 
Officer in place of these duties being delegated to someone else.  

1st reading was given at the May Council meeting then tabled for further review. 

Options for Consideration: 
1) Council give 2nd, and 3rd readings to the Bylaw Enforcement Officer Bylaw

#166-22.
2) Council accept as information.

Administrative Recommendations: 
1) That Council give 2nd reading to By-Law #166-22
2) That Council give 3rd reading to By-Law #166-22

Authorities: 
April 2021 MAP Review 
MGA Section 556 

E-1-A

Page 1 of 6



1 | P a g e

SUMMER VILLAGE OF HALF MOON BAY 
BYLAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER BYLAW 

  BYLAW #166-22 

PURSUANT to the provisions of the Municipal Government Act, Statues of 
Alberta, Chapter M-26.1, Section 556 and amendments thereto: 

The Municipal Council of the Summer Village of Half Moon Bay, in the 
Province of Alberta, duly assembled hereby enacts as follows: 

1. This bylaw may be cited the “Bylaw Enforcement Officer Bylaw.”

2. In this bylaw:

(a) “Administrator” means the person appointed by Council to perform
the duties of Administrator for the Municipality;

(b) “By-Law” means by-laws of the Municipality;

(c) “By-Law Enforcement Officer” means an employee of the Summer
Village, or a person or company contracted by the Summer Village
to execute the duties of enforcing Summer Village Bylaws and who
has been appointed pursuant to this bylaw;

(d) “CAO” means the Chief Administrative Officer of the Summer Village
and the person who is appointed s such by the Summer Village
Council, or anyone who is the action Chief Administrative Officer;

(e) “Committee” means the By-Law Enforcement Committee established
under this By-Law;

(f) “Council” means the municipal council of the Summer Village of Half
Moon Bay;

(g) “Municipality” means the Summer Village of Half Moon Bay.

(h) “Offence Ticket” means any ticket or tag which is authorized under
the Municipal Government Act, the Provincial Offences Procedures
Act, and any other enactment, and which is issued or any bylaw
offence;

(i) “Notice” means any notice authorized to be given under any
municipal bylaws or enactment.

3. The powers and duties of a By-Law Enforcement Officer are as follows:

(a) To enforce the By-Laws which Council has authorized the By-Law
Enforcement Officer to enforce within the boundaries of the
Municipality;

(b) To conduct the directions of Council and the Administrator;

(c) To assist in the prosecution of breaches of Municipal By-Laws
including the gathering of evidence, the attendance of witnesses and
any appearances in court that may be required;

(d) To respond to any investigate complaints;

(e) To issue notices, tickets, or tags;

E-1-A

Page 2 of 6



Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
Bylaw Enforcement Officer Bylaw 

Bylaw #164-22 
 
 

 
(f) To perform all other duties as may from time to time be assigned by 

the Administrator; or if the CAO is the bylaw enforcement officer, 
then such duties as assigned by Council; 
 

(g) To take the official oath prescribed by the Oaths of Office Act upon 
being appointed as a By-Law Enforcement Officer and to carry upon 
his person at all such times as he is acting as By-law Enforcement 
Officer, evidence in writing of his appointment as a By-Law 
Enforcement Officer of the Municipality. 

 
4. Council hereby establishes Council as the By-Law Enforcement 

Committee. 
 

5. The duties and responsibilities of the By-Law Enforcement Committee 
are as follows: 

 
(a) To hear appeals from any decision of the Administrator made 

regarding the discipling of By-Law Enforcement Officers pursuant 
to the By-Law; 
 

(b) To conduct such investigation of the enforcement of By-Laws of 
the Municipality as may be required from time to time; 

 
(c) To perform any further duties and responsibilities as may be 

required. 
 

6. Where it is alleged that a By-Law Enforcement Officer, in performing his 
duties as a Peace Officer has committed a disciplinary default as 
defined by this By-law, the Administrator shall hold a hearing to 
determine if the By-Law Enforcement Officer has committed a 
disciplinary default in performing his duties as a Peace Officer. 
 

7. Where the Administrator intends to conduct a hearing to determine 
whether a By-Law Enforcement Officer has committed a disciplinary 
breach, the following procedure shall be followed: 

 
(a) Adequate notice (a minimum of 2 days) in writing shall be given to 

the By-Law Enforcement Officer who is alleged to have 
committed disciplinary breach and to such other parties that the 
Administrator considers to be affected by the alleged disciplinary 
breach. 
 

(b) At the hearing, the Administrator shall give the By-Law 
Enforcement Officer a reasonable opportunity of furnishing 
relevant evidence. 

 
(c) The Administrator shall inform the By-Law Enforcement Officer of 

the facts in his possession, or the allegation made to him in 
sufficient detail to: 

 
i. Permit him to understand the facts or allegations; and 
ii. Afford him a reasonable opportunity to furnish relevant 

evidence to contradict or explain the facts or allegations. 
 

(d) The Administrator shall give the By-Law Enforcement Officer or 
his representative an adequate opportunity of making 
representations by way of argument to the Administrator. 

 
8.   At the conclusion of a hearing to determine whether there has been a 

E-1-A

Page 3 of 6



Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
Bylaw Enforcement Officer Bylaw 

Bylaw #164-22 
 
 

disciplinary breach, the Administrator may, by a decision in writing with 
reasons, do the following: 

 
(a) Reprimand in writing to the By-Law Enforcement Officer; 

 
(b) Suspend the By-Law Enforcement Officer from acting as a By-

Law Enforcement Officer for the Municipality, but such period of 
suspension shall not exceed 6 months; 

 
(c) Recommend to Council that the appointment of the By-Law 

Enforcement Officer be terminated. 
 
9.   An appeal from the decision of the Administrator may be commenced by 

the By-Law Enforcement Officer who is the subject of the disciplinary 
hearing by filing a written notice of the appeal with the Chairman of the 
Committee within 30 days of the receipt by the By-Law Enforcement 
Officer of the written decision of the Administrator. 

 
10. The Committee shall hold a hearing into the appeal within 40 days of 

the receipt of the appeal by the Chairman of the Committee. 
 
11. The Committee shall give reasonable notice of the hearing to the 

appellant, the Administrator, and to such other parties as the Committee 
consider to be affected by the hearing. 

 
12. In conducting a hearing, the Committee shall follow, with necessary 

modification being made, the procedure as set out in Clause 7 of this 
By-Law. 

 
13. In determining an appeal, the Committee may confirm, revoke, or vary 

the decision or any conditions attached to a decision by the 
Administrator and may, 

 
(a) Reprimand in writing the By-Law Enforcement Officer; 

 
(b) Suspend the By-Law Enforcement Officer from acting as By-Law 

Enforcement Officer for the Municipality but such suspension 
shall not exceed 6 months; 

 
(c) Terminate the appointment of the person as a By-Law 

Enforcement Officer for the Municipality. 
 
14. The Committee’s decision shall be in writing with reasons and shall be 

made within 15 days of the conclusion of the hearing. 
 
15. For purposes of this By-Law, the following shall be disciplinary defaults: 
 

(a) Discreditable conduct, where the By-Law Enforcement Officer 
i. Acts in a disorderly or inappropriate manner, or in a 

manner prejudicial to discipline or likely to bring discredit 
upon the reputation of By-Law Enforcement Officers, 

ii. Uses oppressive or tyrannical conduct towards an inferior 
in rank, 

iii. Uses profane, abusive, or insulting language to any 
member of a police force, special constable, or By-Law 
Enforcement Officer, 

iv. Willfully or negligently makes any false complaint or 
statement against a peace officer, 

v. Is guilt of an indictable offense under a federal stature or 
an offense punishable upon summary conviction under the 

E-1-A

Page 4 of 6



Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
Bylaw Enforcement Officer Bylaw 

Bylaw #164-22 
 
 

Criminal Code of Canada. 
vi. Withholds or suppresses a complaint or report against a 

peace officer, or 
vii. Abets, connives or is knowingly an accessory to a general 

default described in the By-Law. 
 

(b) Insubordination, where the By-Law Enforcement Officer by way of 
action, and without lawful excuse, disobeys, omits or neglects to 
conduct any lawful order. 
 

(c) Neglect of duty, where the By-Law Enforcement Officer,  
 

i. Without lawful excuse neglects or omits promptly and 
diligently to perform a duty as a By-Law Enforcement 
Officer. 

ii. Fails to work in accordance with orders, or leave an area, 
detail, or other place of duty without due permission or 
sufficient cause, 

iii. Fails, when knowing where an offender is to be found, to 
report him, or,  

iv. Fails to report a matter that it is his duty to report. 
 

(d) Deceit, where the By-Law Enforcement Officer, 
i. Knowingly makes or signs a false statement in an official 

document or book, 
ii. Willfully or negligently makes a false, misleading, or 

inaccurate statement pertaining to official duties, or 
iii. Without lawful excuse destroys, mutilates, or conceals an 

official document or record or alters or erases any entries 
therein. 

 
(e) Breach of confidence, where the By-Law Enforcement Officer, 

i. Divulges any matter which it is his duty to keep secret, 
ii. Gives notice, directly or indirectly, to any person against 

whom any warrant or summons has been or is about to be 
issued, except in the lawful execution of such warrant or 
service of such summons, or 

iii. Without proper authorization from a superior or in 
contravention of any rules of the Administrator 
communicates to the news media or to any unauthorized 
person any law enforcement matter which could be 
injurious to any person or investigation, 

iv. Without proper authorization from the Administrator shows 
to any person not a peace officer or any unauthorized 
member the By-Law Enforcement Officer group any book 
or written or printed paper, document or report relating to 
any law enforcement matter that is the property of or in the 
custody of the Municipality, or 

v. Makes any anonymous communication to the 
Administrator. 

 
(f) Miscellaneous, where the By-Law Enforcement Officer, 

i. Fails to account for or to make a prompt, true return of 
money or property received in an official capacity, 

ii. Directly or indirectly solicits or receives a gratuity, present, 
pass, subscription, or testimonial without the consent of the 
Administrator, 

iii. Places himself under a pecuniary or other obligation to a 
person in respect of whose conduct or business operation 
or employment the member may have to report or give 

E-1-A

Page 5 of 6



Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
Bylaw Enforcement Officer Bylaw 

Bylaw #164-22 
 
 

evidence, or 
iv. Improperly uses his position as a By-Law Enforcement 

Officer for private advantage. 
 

(g) Unlawful or unnecessary exercise of authority, where the By-Law 
Enforcement Officer is unnecessarily discourteous or uncivil to a 
member of the public. 

 
(h) Consuming intoxicating liquor or drugs in a manner prejudicial to 

duty, where the By-Law Enforcement Officer, 
i. While on duty is unfit for duty through consuming 

intoxicating liquor or drugs,  
ii. Reports for duty and is unfit for duty through consuming 

intoxicating liquor or drugs, 
iii. Except with the consent of a superior or in the discharge of 

duty, consumes or receives from any other person 
intoxicating liquor or drugs while on duty, or 

iv. Demands, persuades, or attempts to persuade another 
person to give or purchase or obtain for a By-Law 
Enforcement Officer while on duty, any intoxicating liquor, 
or drugs. 

 
16.  That this Bylaw shall take effect on the date of the third and final 

reading. 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND GIVEN FIRST READING this 17th day of May 2022. 
 
  
 
 

______________________________ 
Jonathan Johnston, Mayor 

 
 

______________________________ 
Tanner Evans, C.A.O. 

 
 
 
 
 

GIVEN SECOND READING this 28th day of June 2022. 
 
 
GIVEN THIRD AND FINAL READING this 28th day of June 2022.   
 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
Jonathan Johnston, Mayor 

 
 

______________________________ 
Tanner Evans, C.A.O. 

 

E-1-A

Page 6 of 6



Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 

June 28, 2022 

Council & Legislation 

Request for Decision 

Agenda Item:  Cheque Signing Policy 

Background: 
Administration has amended the Cheque Signing Policy and is bringing it forward 
requesting Council approve a revision to the financial limit to allow Administration 
to release EFTs in excess of $10,000.00 for shared costs, therefore the Mayor 
will no longer be required to come into the office to sign off on these expenses 
prior to payment being released.  There will be no changes to the $10,000.00 
financial limit for cheque signing. 

Options for Consideration: 
1. Council adopt the amended Cheque Signing Policy as presented.
2. Council adopt the amended Cheque Signing Policy as amended.
3. Council accept as information.

Administrative Recommendations: 
1. Council adopt the amended Cheque Signing Policy as presented.

Authorities: 
n/a 

E-1-B

Page 1 of 3



Policy Statement: 

To establish a policy that allows for cheque signing authority by two members of 
Administration for the Summer Village of Half Moon Bay. 

Purpose and Scope: 

To allow for cheques to be signed by two members of Administration for expedited 
payment and/or certain events where members of Council are not available to sign.    

1. Signing Authorities:

1.1 Members of Council of the Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
1.2 Chief Administrative Officer 
1.3 Executive Assistant  

2. Basis of Signing Policy:

2.1 The basis of the Cheque Signing Policy is to establish a process in which 
Administration can sign cheques and release EFTs (electronic funds 
transfers) without being accompanied by a Council member signature.   

3. Financial Limit:

3.1 The financial limit in which Administration only signatures are permitted is 
$10,000 or less.  There is no limit for the release of the monthly shared costs 
by EFT. 

4. Signing Conditions:

4.1 Cheques that have Administration only signatures will be allowed under the 
following conditions: 

4.1.1 When a member of Council is not available to sign. 
4.1.2 When a cheque has been approved in a Council meeting but was 

missed during the signing session. 

Policy Title 
 Cheque Signing Policy 

Date: 
June 28, 2022 

Resolution No. 
HMC-22- 

E-1-B

Page 2 of 3

pforsyth
Highlight



2 | P a g e

POLICY:  CHEQUE SIGNING POLICY 

4.1.3 In the event of a manual cheque being necessary, all authorized back-
up paperwork (email, fax, etc.) from a member of Council, must 
accompany an Administration only signed cheque. 

E-1-B

Page 3 of 3



June 21, 2022 

Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
June 28, 2022 
Planning and Development 
Request for Decision   
Agenda Item: LUB Amendments Bylaw #169-22 

Background:
At the last Council meeting, Council directed administration to prepare an 
amendment to the Land Use Bylaw to include tourist home regulations. The 
following is a summary of the proposed amendments for Land Use Bylaw 123/13. 

1. Part One: 1.3 Definitions, add the following definition: “tourist home” –
means a discretionary use wherein a dwelling unit is offered for rent to
guests for no less than thirty (30) days.

2. Part Three: 4(8), add the following:

Tourist Homes

(a) A development permit is required to operate a tourist
home. Tourist Homes will be issued for twelve (12)
months. Registered owners cannot operate more than
one (1) tourist home in the Residential District (R).

(b) Tourist homes shall be contained within the principal
building and therefore garage suits shall not be used.

(c) Notwithstanding part three, section 2(3), no recreation
vehicle shall be used as accommodation for tourist home
guests.

(d) The maximum number of people staying overnight in a
tourist home shall be two (2) times the number of
bedrooms plus two (2). Floor plan is to be submitted at
the time of application.

(e) The operator of a tourist home shall provide the Summer
Village Office with the name and phone number(s) of at
least one person (adult) that is authorized to act on the
owner/operator’s absence. The owner/operator is
responsible for informing the Summer Village Office of
any changes in this information.

E-2-A

Page 1 of 4



June 21, 2022 

(f) The minimum length of stay shall be no less than 30 
days in peak season between May (15) until September 
(15).  
 

(g) The tourist home shall always abide by the community 
bylaws and policies. A summary of key bylaws will be 
provided by administration.  

 

(h) In residential districts tourist homes shall not display any 
sign advertising the tourist home.  

 

(i) Adequate parking must be in place on the property, of a 
minimum of one stall per bedroom.  

 

(j) Approval of a development permit does not exempt the 
owner/operator of a tourist home from complying with 
any federal, provincial, or other municipal legislation.  

 

3. Part Four: (R) District, add the following to Discretionary 
Use: 
Tourist Home 

 

Attached is Bylaw #169-22 for Councils review.  
 

Options for Consideration: 
1. Give first reading to Bylaw #169-22 and schedule public hearing at next 

meeting, or 
2. Amend Bylaw #169-22, then give first reading and schedule public hearing.   
 
Administrative Recommendations: 
Council to give first reading to Bylaw #169-22 with the public hearing scheduled 
at the next Council meeting.  
 
Authorities: 
Land Use Bylaw #123/13 – Council on its own initiative may give first reading to a 
bylaw to amend this Land Use Bylaw. 

Section 230(1) of the MGA – Council must hold a public hearing before second 
reading of a bylaw. 

E-2-A

Page 2 of 4



SUMMER VILLAGE OF HALF MOON BAY 
LAND USE BYLAW 

AMENDMENT BYLAW #169-22 

Being a Bylaw of the Summer Village of Half Moon Bay, in the Province of 
Alberta, to authorize amendments to the Summer Village of Half Moon Bay Land 
Use Bylaw 123-13. 

WHEREAS Section 692 of the Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, authorizes 
a Council to amend a land use bylaw; 

WHEREAS the Council deems it desirable to amend Land Use Bylaw 123-13; 

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Summer Village of Half Moon Bay, in the 
Province of Alberta, duly assembled, hereby enacts as follows: 

An amendment to the Land Use Bylaw 123/13: 

1. Part One: 1.3 – Add “tourist home” definition: means a
discretionary use wherein a dwelling unit is offered for rent
to guests for no less than thirty (30) days.

2. Part Three: 4(8), add the following:

Tourist Homes

(a) A development permit is required to operate a tourist
home. Tourist Homes will be issued for twelve (12)
months. Registered owners cannot operate more than
one (1) tourist home in the Residential District (R).

(b) Tourist homes shall be contained within the principal
building and therefore garage suites shall not be used.

(c) Notwithstanding part three, section 2(3), no recreation
vehicle shall be used as accommodation for tourist
home guests.

(d) The maximum number of people staying overnight in a
tourist home shall be two (2) times the number of
bedrooms plus two (2). Floor plan is to be submitted at
the time of application.

(e) The operator of a tourist home shall provide the
Summer Village Office with the name and phone
number(s) of at least one person (adult) that is
authorized to act on the owner/operator’s absence. The
owner/operator is responsible for informing the Summer
Village Office of any changes in this information.

(f) The minimum length of stay shall be no less than 30
days in the peak season between May (15) until
September (15).

(g) The tourist home shall always abide by the community
bylaws and policies. A summary of key bylaws will be
provided by administration.

(h) In residential districts tourist homes shall not display any
sign advertising the tourist home.

E-2-A

Page 3 of 4



Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
Land Use Bylaw Amendment Bylaw #169-22 

P a g e  | 2 
 

 
(i) Adequate parking must be in place on the property, of a 

minimum of one stall per bedroom.  
 
(j) Approval of a development permit does not exempt the 

owner/operator of a tourist home from complying with 
any federal, provincial, or other municipal legislation.  

 
3. Part Four: (R) District, add the following to Discretionary 

Uses: 
Tourist Home 
 

 
 
INTRODUCED AND GIVEN FIRST READING this 28th day of June 2022. 
 
 

 
______________________________ 

Jonathan Johnston, Mayor 
 
 

______________________________ 
Tanner Evans, C.A.O. 

 
 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING HELD this     day of July 2022. 
 
 
GIVEN SECOND READING this     day of July 2022. 
 
 
GIVEN THIRD AND FINAL READING this    day of July 2022. 
 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
Jonathan Johnston, Mayor 

 
 

______________________________ 
Tanner Evans, C.A.O. 

E-2-A

Page 4 of 4



June 21, 2022 

Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
June 28, 2022 
Planning and Development 
Request for Decision   
Agenda Item: LUB Review 

Background:
Administration has received 2 quotes for a Land Use Bylaw review for Half Moon 
Bay. Quotes are as follows: 

- Bluerock Planning/ProACTIVE Planning:
$4,000.00 (Legislative Changes)
$12,000.00 (Comprehensive Review and Changes)

- Municipal Planning Services:
$8,043.00

Options for Consideration: 
1. Council to accept a quoted price from one of the listed providers.
2. Council direct administration to provide additional information or quotes.
3. Council accept as information.

Administrative Recommendations: 
Council to discuss and direct administration. 

Authorities: 
N/A 

E-2-B

Page 1 of 39



E-2-B

Page 2 of 39



E-2-B

Page 3 of 39



E-2-B

Page 4 of 39



E-2-B

Page 5 of 39



E-2-B

Page 6 of 39



E-2-B

Page 7 of 39



E-2-B

Page 8 of 39



E-2-B

Page 9 of 39



E-2-B

Page 10 of 39



E-2-B

Page 11 of 39



E-2-B

Page 12 of 39



E-2-B

Page 13 of 39



E-2-B

Page 14 of 39



E-2-B

Page 15 of 39



E-2-B

Page 16 of 39



E-2-B

Page 17 of 39



E-2-B

Page 18 of 39



E-2-B

Page 19 of 39



E-2-B

Page 20 of 39



E-2-B

Page 21 of 39



E-2-B

Page 22 of 39



E-2-B

Page 23 of 39



E-2-B

Page 24 of 39



E-2-B

Page 25 of 39



E-2-B

Page 26 of 39



E-2-B

Page 27 of 39



E-2-B

Page 28 of 39



E-2-B

Page 29 of 39



E-2-B

Page 30 of 39



E-2-B

Page 31 of 39



E-2-B

Page 32 of 39



E-2-B

Page 33 of 39



E-2-B

Page 34 of 39



E-2-B

Page 35 of 39



E-2-B

Page 36 of 39



E-2-B

Page 37 of 39



E-2-B

Page 38 of 39



E-2-B

Page 39 of 39



June 21, 2022 

Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
June 28, 2022 
Planning and Development 
Request for Decision   
Agenda Item: Fees Bylaw 

Background:
Administration has provided the amended Fees Bylaw to include the fee to apply 
for a Tourist Home application to go along with the recent Land Use Bylaw 
amendments which include regulations on the operation of a Tourist Home.  

Added to the existing bylaw: 

6. Tourist Home Development Permit $500.00
Development applications for the operation of a Tourist Home, request to the
Municipal Planning Commission for approval/denial.

Options for Consideration: 
1. Council give 1st, 2nd, 3rd, readings to Fees Bylaw #170-22.
2. Council accept as information.

Administrative Recommendations: 
1. That Council give 1st reading to Bylaw #170-22.
2. That Council give 2nd reading to Bylaw #170-22.
3. Upon unanimous consent by Council to give 3rd reading at this meeting.
4. That Council give 3rd reading to Bylaw #170-22.

Authorities: 
MGA Section 556. 

E-2-C

Page 1 of 3



SUMMER VILLAGE OF HALF MOON BAY 
FEES BYLAW  

BYLAW #170-22 

BEING A BYLAW OF THE SUMMER VILLAGE OF HALF MOON BAY, IN 
THE PROVINCE  OF ALBERTA, TO ESTABLISH THE FEES TO BE 
CHARGED TO PROVIDE INFORMATION REGARDING TAXES, 
ASSESSMENT, DEVELOPMENT AND GENERAL OFFICE SERVICES. 

WHEREAS pursuant to the authority conferred upon it by the Municipal 
Government Act, Statutes of Alberta, 2000, Chapter M-26 and amendments 
thereto, the Council of the Summer Village of Half Moon Bay, in the Province of 
Alberta has the power to impose certain charges for the issuance of 
information on taxes, assessment, development and general office services; 
and 

WHEREAS it is deemed necessary and expedient by the Municipal Council of 
the Summer Village of Half Moon Bay to impose certain charges for the 
issuance of certain information and documents. 

NOW THEREFORE, the council of the Summer Village of Half Moon Bay, duly 
assembled, enacts as follows: 

1. This by-law may be referred to as the fees for office services.
2. In this by-law:

a. “Administrator” means the Chief Administrative Officer of the Summer
Village.
b. “Council” means the Municipal Council of the Summer Village of Half
Moon Bay.
c. “Fees” means the charges established in schedule A of this by-law.

3. That this bylaw shall come into full force and effect as, on and from the date
of the final passing of same.

Bylaw #152-19 is hereby rescinded. 

INTRODUCED AND GIVEN FIRST READING this 28th day of June 2022. 

GIVEN SECOND READING this 28th day of June 2022. 

GIVEN THIRD AND FINAL READING this 28th day of June 2022. 

______________________________ 
Jonathan Johnston, Mayor 

______________________________ 
Tanner Evans, C.A.O. 

E-2-C

Page 2 of 3



Summer Village of Half Moon Bay 
Fees Bylaw 

Bylaw #170-22 
 
 

SUMMER VILLAGE OF HALF MOON BAY 
BYLAW NO.  170-22 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 
1. Tax Certificates $25.00 
 Upon request in writing, the Administrator and/or their designate shall 

issue a certificate showing whether or not all taxes in respect of any 
assessable parcel of land or other property have been paid and if not, the 
amount of current taxes and arrears payable against the parcel or other 
property. 

 
2. Tax Search $25.00 
 Upon request in writing for tax roll and/or assessment information, 

(including a legal description or civic address of the parcel by which it can 
be located) is obtained directly from the Summer Village’s computer 
system. 

 
3. Additional information  $25.00 
 A customer requesting additional information and/or assessment 

information that is not readily available from the computer system. 
 
4. Development Permit  $200.00 

Dwellings over 1500 sq.ft. in floor area will be charged additional 
$0.10/sq.ft.  
 

5. Discretionary Use/Variance Requests  $100.00 
Development applications for discretionary uses or variance requests 
submitted to the Municipal Planning Commission for approval/denial. 
 

6. Tourist Home Development Permit $500.00 
Development applications for the operation of a Tourist Home, request to 
the Municipal Planning Commission for approval/denial.   
 

7. Amendments to Development Permit           $200.00 
Significant amendments to an existing development permit. Implementing 
the fee shall be at the discretion of the Chief Administrative Officer or 
delegate.  

8. SDAB Appeal                                                    $400.00 
Appeals made to the Subdivision and Development Appeal Board.  
 

9. Compliance Certificate  $100.00 
 Upon request in writing accompanied by a cheque in the amount of $ 

100.00, a compliance certificate shall be issued. RPR’s must be dated 
within 30 days and have 2 copies. 

 
10. Photocopy Charges  $0.50 
 Upon request for photocopies of any documents retained at the 

Administration Office a fee of $0.50 per copy shall be collected. 
 
11. Fax Charges                           $1.00 
 Upon a request to receive of send a fax a fee of $ 1.00 per page for an 

incoming fax, and $ 2.00 per page for a local and long distance outgoing 
fax, and $ 10.00 for the first page and $ 2.00 for every page thereafter for 
an overseas outgoing fax shall be collected. 

 
12. Special Information  $50.00 
 Upon a request in writing for information other than tax roll and/or 

assessment that is not readily available a charge of $50.00 per hour to 
compile the information shall be collected. 

E-2-C

Page 3 of 3



Summer Village of  Half Moon Bay 

June 28, 2022 

Council Reports 

Information Item 

Council Reports: 
Jon Johnston 
Andrea Remington 
Mike Pashak - written reports  

Committee Reports: 
Julie Maplethorpe, Summer Village of Jarvis Bay 

• Town of Sylvan Lake Library Board

Correspondence: 

Information Items: 

Upcoming Meetings: 
Next Council Meeting – September 26, 2022 

F-1,2,3

Page 1 of 10



COUNCIL REPORTS (May 17, 2022): 

Councillor Mike Pashak - report 

Sylvan Lake Regional Wastewater Commission (SLRWWC) 

• The Commission has not met since the last HMB Council meeting.

SLRWWC South Shore Line Project (SSL) 

• The SSL Water For Life application continues to move through Alberta Transportation.  That
department informed SLRWWC that no decisions have been made yet on 2022 grant
funding.  Although they did say that we are still on the “front burner” with them.

• Minister Rajan Sawhney, Alberta Transportation, stepped down from Cabinet to run for the
UCP Leadership.  An interim Minister has been appointed so hopefully there is not a delay
in decisions on 2022 grant funding.

• Eckville continues to review their options for Wastewater treatment and have not made
any decision yet on them joining the SLRWWC.  The good news is that SLRWWC received
confirmation that the line from the Town of Sylvan Lake to Red Deer has sufficient capacity
to allow Eckville wastewater to be treated in Red Deer.

Association of Summer Villages of Alberta (ASVA) meetings: 

• The ASVA hosted a Town Hall on May 12 to discuss the impacts of the Local Government
Fiscal Framework (LGFF) on Summer Villages.  The member attendees decided to write
letters to Alberta Municipalities requesting that they support a 50% increase to Base
Funding for Summer Villages; 35 of 51 members sent letters.  The LGFF will set capital grant
funding for municipalities for the next 10 to 20 years.  Advocacy work continues on this
issue as it is one of the top issues for summer villages at this time.

• Municipal Affairs has requested that Alberta Municipalities and Rural Municipalities of
Alberta work together on recommendations for an LGFF allocation formula.  The ASVA has
provided feedback to ABmunis.  Municipal Affairs will receive the recommendations by
October with the goal of finalizing the allocation formula in January 2023.

• The ASVA Board held a strategic planning session on June 11.  This work will set the
priorities for the Association for the next three years.  The results of this session will be
shared with members at the ASVA Annual Conference on October 20th.

Alberta Municipalities (AB Munis and formerly AUMA) 

• Power and Natural Gas Consumers’ Panel – I attended my first meeting on this advisory
panel.  The increased cost for electricity and natural gas is a big concern with consumers.
Over the next two years Utility companies will set their ROI, rates and rate structures for

F-1,2,3

Page 2 of 10



collecting costs from consumers.  This Panel will assist the Utility Consumers Advocate in 
setting priorities and determining the work necessary to ensure consumers are protected. 

• ABmunis Small Communities committee meeting included an interesting presentation on 
viability of Villages.  22 Villages have gone through a viability review in the last 10 years; 11 
remain as Villages and 11 dissolved and are now run by the Municipal District or County.  
Viability reviews typically happen when there are governance issues, decision making by 
Council or advice by Administration, and that leads to issues with Asset Management 
(infrastructure deficit) and financial management.  Government of Alberta makes these 
Villages complete a condition assessment of their infrastructure and create a 10 year 
capital plan; not having these items leads to problems for the municipality. 

• ABmunis held two webinars in the last couple of weeks:  

1. Population Growth and Aging in Alberta Municipalities AUMA.UP46-PopGrowth.Aging-
McQuillan.Laszlo.June7_.pdf (policyschool.ca) this research paper discusses the shift in 
population to larger urban centers and the decline in population in rural towns and 
villages.  It also identifies the potential issues this presents when managing your 
community and providing the services required by residents. 

2. Organizing Canadian Local Government  AM.OrgCdnLocGovt.Spicer.pdf (policyschool.ca) 
This paper examines the three main governance models, using examples from across 
Canada, to look at their pros and cons. The conclusion is that no one model is best and 
communities will have to decide on the governance model that best suits their needs. 

F-1,2,3

Page 3 of 10

https://www.policyschool.ca/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/AUMA.UP46-PopGrowth.Aging-McQuillan.Laszlo.June7_.pdf
https://www.policyschool.ca/wp-content/uploads/2022/06/AUMA.UP46-PopGrowth.Aging-McQuillan.Laszlo.June7_.pdf
https://www.policyschool.ca/wp-content/uploads/2022/05/AM.OrgCdnLocGovt.Spicer.pdf


F-1,2,3

Page 4 of 10



F-1,2,3

Page 5 of 10



F-1,2,3

Page 6 of 10



F-1,2,3

Page 7 of 10



F-1,2,3

Page 8 of 10



F-1,2,3

Page 9 of 10



F-1,2,3

Page 10 of 10


	Agenda
	C-1 MINUTES
	AGENDA APPROVAL
	CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
	HMC-22-038 MOVED by Councillor Pashak that the minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council held on April 19, 2022, be approved as presented.
	CARRIED
	1) Action Items List
	2) Accounts Payable
	3) Quarterly Financial Report
	Mayor Johnston declared the Public Hearing for Bylaw #165-22,
	Land Use Bylaw Amendment Bylaw, open at 10:05 a.m.
	Mayor Johnston provided the procedure for the public hearing.
	Kara Kashuba, Development Officer, provided the background on the requested bylaw amendments.
	Part One: General 1.7 Establishment of Fees
	Mayor Johnston asked if anyone would like to speak. No public were present to speak.
	Mayor Johnston declared the Public Hearing for Bylaw #165-22
	closed at 10:09 a.m. and noted no further comments or submissions would be received.

	D-1 COUNCIL TASKS LIST
	HALF MOON BAY

	D-2 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LISTING
	Payables-Update
	Payables-List of Accounts for Approval
	Council Expenses

	D-3 PUBLIC WORKS REPORT
	D-4 DEVELOPMENT UPDATE
	E-1-A BYLAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER BYLAW
	Bylaw Enforcement Officer Bylaw
	166-22 Bylaw Enforcement Officer

	E-1-B CHEQUE SIGNING POLICY
	Cheque Signing Policy
	Cheque Signing Policy 2022

	E-2-A TOURIST HOMES
	Development - LUB Amendment Bylaw
	169-22 LUB Amendments Bylaw
	An amendment to the Land Use Bylaw 123/13:


	E-2-B LUB REVIEW QUOTES
	Development - LUB Quotes
	Development LUB Quotes Attachment

	E-2-C FEES BYLAW
	Development - Fees Bylaw
	170-22 Fees Bylaw

	F-1,2,3 COUNCIL REPORTS
	Council Reports
	06.08.2022 - TOSLLB Regular Meeting Highlights

	F-1,2,3 COUNCIL REPORTS.pdf
	Council Reports
	06.08.2022 - TOSLLB Regular Meeting Highlights




